
 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 4:00 PM 

HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/85170928096 

MEETING ID: 851 7092 8096 

17193594580 
 

 

Roll Call 

 

Correspondence Received 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Actions & Presentations 
 

Public Hearing for Blue Sage Center for the Arts requesting a Special Variance on Alley Setbacks and 

Parking Requirements. 

Adjournment 
  

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85170928096


 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

 

2



 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

3



 
 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

REPORT OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR  

APPLICATION FOR ZONING VARIANCE V-23-02 

(Real Estate Parcel Number: 324506128015,  

Commonly known as: 226 Grand Avenue Paonia, CO 81428) 

August 29, 2023 

Background 

V-23-02 Application for variance as outlined in § 18-10-40 of the Town of Paonia’s Municipal Code 
of Ordinances for Blue Sage Center for the Arts for the property commonly known as: 226 Grand 
Avenue.  

The request is to vary from §13-3-80, C-1 District Rear Yard Setback Requirement of twenty (20) 
feet (Attachment A); and vary from §16-6-10 Off-Street Parking Spaces Required (Attachment B). 

General Information 

The applicant seeks a variance request to construct a covered and shaded porch on the rear of the 
property within the applicant’s property line, within the existing fence and in line with the 
character of other buildings abutting the alleyway. The applicant has designed and fabricated the 
trellises and other architectural pieces associated with the project and were recently notified that 
they would need to seek a variance request.  

The Applicant would like to use the structure to hold outdoor events during the summer months 
and the shaded nature of the structure will shelter patrons from the sun and rain. During the height 
of the recent pandemic, the Town approved a temporary tent structure allowing for outdoor events 
to be held. The Applicant is seeking approval of a permanent shaded structure that utilizes a 
footprint very similar to the temporary tent within the same location.  

Including with this application is a cover letter from the Applicant, Blue Sage Center for the Arts, 
that details the Applicant’s plan for improving the rear of the building (Attachment C).  

The current zoning for the property is C-1, defined by §16-2-70 C-1, Core Commercial District as:  

It is the intent of this District to provide for the orderly development of those commercial and 
business uses, government, educational and cultural facilities that are characteristic of 
downtown areas and promote comparison shopping and pedestrian activity in the core area. 
This District is not intended for businesses and commercial uses that are oriented to the 
automobile and require extensive ground-level floor area.  

The current zoning and building code contemplates minimum lot coverages for Residential Zoning, 
but does not contemplate maximum lot coverages and makes no further consideration for 
maximum or minimum lot coverages within the C-1 Zoning District.  

4



 
 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 

1Note, §16-11-60 mentions maximum lot coverages, but it is not contemplated in any other provision of the Code.  
2Note: This is the only mention of a Comprehensive Plan, all other documents from the Town reference a Master Plan. This is 
the correct term for the document that the Town would like to use for future land use considerations. 
3Note: The Town does not employ a Town Engineer. 

The proposed addition of an accessory structure, shaded back porch/deck, does not exceed the 
maximum lot coverage for the C-1 Zoning District since it’s not contemplated within the Code. 
Instead, the code contemplates in §16-1-100 Definitions, Buildable Area, as, “the portion of a lot, 
parcel or tract of land excluding all required yard area (setbacks) where a building could be located 
in accordance with provisions of this chapter.” This guidance in the definitions of a Buildable Area, 
effectively give no limit on lot coverages.  

Adjacent properties to the Applicant’s property are non-conforming to the Code and utilize a zero-
lot line setback to the Town’s Rights of Way within the alley. The Code contemplates how to 
measure a rear yard setback, §16-1-100, Definitions, Setbacks, “are measured from the front yard, 
side yard and rear property lines… Rear setbacks are measured from the front edge of any porch or 
wall of a structure excluding an eave with a maximum of a twenty-four-inch projection into the 
setback area.”  

The Applicant is requesting an encroachment into the rear yard setback of fifteen (15) feet and 
seven (7) inches.  

Should the Planning Commission consider the Applicant’s proposed Shaded Porch as an accessory 
building, §16-11-60 Requirements for Accessory Buildings and Uses1 (Attachment D), may apply. If 
the Planning Commission considers the proposed shaded porch as an accessory building, then the 
applicant is only requesting a setback encroachment of five (5) feet and seven (7) inches.  

The applicant currently has an occupancy limit of one-hundred and forty-four (144) for Curtis Hall 
(assembly), and one-hundred and ten (110) for the Gallery and Gift Shop (Retail) for a total of Two-
Hundred and Fifty-Four (254) amongst both uses.  

§16-6-10, Off-Street Parking Spaces Required, specifically Table 16-5, requires, “Places of public 
assembly such as churches, auditoriums, meeting rooms, funeral homes,” to have, “1.0 space for 
every four seats or benches in the principal place of assembly.” Should the Plan Commission 
consider the Blue Sage Center for the Arts to be a place of public assembly, this would require a 
minimum of thirty-six (36) off-street parking spaces for Curtis Hall.  

§16-6-10, Off-Street Parking Spaces Required, specifically Table 16-5, requires, “Retail businesses 
except for furniture and appliance stores,” to have, “1.0 space for every three-hundred (300) square 
feet of floor area.” The Gallery and Gift Shop has a retail area of approximately One-Thousand Five-
Hundred square feet (1,500), this would require a minimum of five (5) off-street parking spaces for 
the Gallery and Gift Shop.  

Based off of the calculations for both Curtis Hall and the Gallery and Gift Shop, there would need to 
be a total of Forty-One (41) parking spaces required.  

Should the Planning Commission determine that the intended use of the Blue Sage Center for the 
Arts not fit within the definitions of Public Assembly and Retail businesses, then §16-6-30, Parking 
Requirements for Uses Not Listed, for specific uses not listed, the Planning Commission shall 
determine the appropriate number of parking spaces required based upon the type of activity, 
intensity, number of employees and similarity to listed uses, would apply.  

5



 
 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 

1Note, §16-11-60 mentions maximum lot coverages, but it is not contemplated in any other provision of the Code.  
2Note: This is the only mention of a Comprehensive Plan, all other documents from the Town reference a Master Plan. This is 
the correct term for the document that the Town would like to use for future land use considerations. 
3Note: The Town does not employ a Town Engineer. 

The Applicant has offered an agreement to the Town in consideration of the variance for the shaded 
porch to maintain the current occupancy limit of one-hundred and forty-four (144) for Curtis Hall, 
and one-hundred and ten (110). This agreement considers maintaining the total occupancy limit of 
two-hundred and fifty-four (254) amongst all of the improvements, including the shaded porch 
(Attachment E).  

In consideration of meeting the required off-street parking minimums, the Applicant has offered an 
agreement to utilize the public parking lot located in the alley between Grand Avenue and Main 
Street and the public parking lot located on Main Street, to the Town (Attachment F).  

Required Findings Needed to Issue a Variance and/or Considerations for a Special Review 

§16-4-50, Site plan review criteria and performance standards 

(a) (1) Compliance of the application with this Code in general. Staff find that the Applicant’s 
situation is unique and peculiar to the property and that an exceptional and unique 
hardship exists. Adjacent property owners, including but not limited to, Town Hall, have 
utilized the entire length of their commercial properties, and have encroached into the rear 
yard setback. The Applicant has operated a not-for-profit organization that offers free music 
and art to the general public, and has generally complied with the Code.  
 

(a) (2) The compatibility of the proposed use and site plan with the character of the 
surrounding area. Adjacent property owners currently encroach into the rear yard setback 
for their principal structure/buildings. The Applicant wishes add an accessory structure to 
the property up to the existing rear property line so that patrons can participate in an 
outdoor music venue that is open to the public. Staff believe that allowing for the proposed 
use is compatible with other and similar uses in the area.  
 

(a) (3) The desirability and need for the proposed use. Town Staff determined during the 
pandemic that an outdoor venue at the location was needed and desirable. The Applicant 
operated a temporary tent structure in the location throughout the pandemic and would 
like to make the use permanent through the construction of a shaded porch structure.  
 

(a) (4) The potential for adverse environmental influences that might result from the proposed 
use. Staff find that the potential for adverse environmental influences does not exist for the 
proposed use or for the variances being requested.  
 

(a) (5) Compatibility of the proposed use and site plan with the policies and guidelines in the 
Comprehensive Plan2. Staff find that the proposed use and variances follow with the existing 
Comprehensive Plan from 1996. Specifically, LU/D-10 Improve the physical appearance of 
existing commercial land uses; LU/D-12 Preserve, and when necessary, expand the 
downtown core, and LU/D-26 Enhance opportunities for active recreation within the Town 
to provide safe, local and inexpensive recreational opportunities for children, the elderly 
and others.  

6



 
 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 

1Note, §16-11-60 mentions maximum lot coverages, but it is not contemplated in any other provision of the Code.  
2Note: This is the only mention of a Comprehensive Plan, all other documents from the Town reference a Master Plan. This is 
the correct term for the document that the Town would like to use for future land use considerations. 
3Note: The Town does not employ a Town Engineer. 

(b)  Lights and Signs shall be located in a manner that will not be distracting to adjoining 
properties or passing motorists. The applicant states in their application that all string 
lighting shall be dark skies compliant. Staff have determined that the string lighting and 
other lighting will comply with other provisions of the Town’s code and will not provide a 
distraction to adjacent property owners or passing motorists.  
 

(c) Landscaping shall be provided in areas near the public right-of-way and located with 
consideration for energy conservation. An acceptable plan must be provided for 
maintenance of the required landscaped areas. Staff have determined that this provision is 
not applicable to the proposed use or the variances being sought by the applicant.  
 

(d) Control of storm drainage shall be provided so as to not damage adjoining properties. The 
plan must be approved by the Town Engineer3. Staff believe that the proposed 
improvement will not need a full storm drainage plan since the proposal will utilize the 
existing drainage patterns for the site and the shaded structure’s pitched roof will not add 
additional stress on the existing system.  
 

(e) Site design and building plans shall include provisions for needs of handicapped individuals 
as required by the Building Code or other ordinances of the Town. The proposed site plan 
and drawings associated with the application include necessary provisions for handicapped 
individuals as required by this provision of the code.  
 

(f) Approved landscaping or solid fencing capable of screening adjacent properties shall be 
provided where commercial uses abut residential uses. The proposed improvements do not 
abut residential uses. However, the existing privacy fence shall remain.  
 

(g) Commercial and industrial uses shall conform to the following performance standards: 
Staff find that only (1) and (4) of the eight standards applies to this review and variance: 
 
(1) No dust, odor, gas, fumes, glare or vibration shall extend beyond lot lines. Glare pertains 

to sunlight reflected from windows or other integral portions of buildings, as well as 
from lighting fixtures and signs. The applicant has stated that all string lighting with be 
dark skies compliant.  
 

(4) Noise. No noise shall be emitted which exceeds a maximum of seventy-five (75) decibels 
with a maximum increase of five (5) decibels permitted for a maximum of fifteen (15) 
minutes in any one (1) hour. In addition, every activity shall be conducted so that no 
noise produced is objectionable due to intermittence, beat frequency or shrillness. The 
applicant has stated in their application that there will be music for 1-2 hours in the 
early evening and that special events will not proceed past midnight. Staff finds that this 
provision of the findings be found favorable to the applicant since there has been an 
existing use similar to what is proposed and that it fits within the goals and objectives of 
the comprehensive plan.   

7



 
 
TOWN OF PAONIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 

1Note, §16-11-60 mentions maximum lot coverages, but it is not contemplated in any other provision of the Code.  
2Note: This is the only mention of a Comprehensive Plan, all other documents from the Town reference a Master Plan. This is 
the correct term for the document that the Town would like to use for future land use considerations. 
3Note: The Town does not employ a Town Engineer. 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of the special use review and variances and bases their 
recommendation on the information given by the applicant, the considerations given by the 
applicant for various agreements, the benefit to the general public provided by the improvements, 
and with how the proposed improvements meet the goals and objectives of the existing 
comprehensive plan.  
 
Potential Motions:  
 

1.) I move to recommend approval of Variance 2023-02 because it meets the goals and 
objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, that there is a need for use that is described by the 
applicant, and that there exists a hardship to the Applicant that is unique to the property 
and that this approval intends to relieve; with the following conditions: that the applicant 
signs a Parking Agreement and Occupancy Limit Agreement with the Town prior to 
completing any of the proposed improvements.  
 

2.) I move to recommend denial of Variance 2023-02 because it doesn’t meet the criteria for a 
special review or a variance since the applicant hasn’t demonstrated that it meets the goals 
and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan and that the hardship for which the applicant 
seeks relief was caused by themselves.  
 

3.) I move to defer a decision for Variance 2023-02 to the Board of Trustees.  

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:13 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 16-3-80. Schedule of requirements, commercial and industrial districts. 

Table 16-4 
Schedule of Requirements - Commercial and Industrial Districts 
 

Requirements  C-1 District  C-2 District  I-1 District  I-2 District  
Minimum Lot Area  
Nonresidential  2,500 sq. ft.  8,000 sq. ft.  8,000 sq. ft.  10,000 sq. 

ft.  
Residential  6,000 sq. ft.1  6,000 sq. ft.2    

 Combined 
residential/commercial  

2,500 sq. ft.  8,000 sq. ft.    

 Minimum Lot Width  25 ft.  50 ft.  50 ft.  100 ft.  
Maximum Building 
Height  

35 ft.  35 ft.  25 ft. 2  35 ft.  

Yard requirements  
All yard areas adjacent 
to an arterial street  

0 ft.  50 ft.  50 ft.  75 ft.  

Front yard setback  
  arterial  0 ft.  50 ft.  50 ft.  75 ft.  
  collector  0 ft.  25 ft.  35 ft.  50 ft.  
   local  0 ft.  25 ft.  25 ft.  50 ft.  
Side yard setback  0 ft.  10 ft.  10 ft.  20 ft.  
Rear yard setback  20 ft.  20 ft.  20 ft.  30 ft.  
Minimum landscaped 
open space  

-  10%  10%  10%  

 
2 Unless the building is set back at least 150 feet from adjacent lot of lots in the R-1 or R-2 Districts, and if it is determined that 

the building will not block the view of adjoining R-1 or R-2 developed properties.  

(Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. X, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

 

 

19



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:14 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Sec. 16-6-10. Off-street parking spaces required. 

(a) The following number of off-street parking spaces shall be provided with the construction, addition or 
change of use, which requires a special review to any of the buildings, and uses listed in Table 16-5 below.  

(b) Parking spaces shall be at least nine (9) feet by nineteen (19) feet, except that up to twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the required spaces may be designated for compact cars with a minimum space of eight (8) feet by 
sixteen (16) feet.  

(c) Table 16-5 below sets forth the parking requirements for uses.  

Table 16-5 
Off-Street Parking Space Requirements 

 

Use  Parking Requirements  
Residential units: 
Efficiency or one-
bedroom  

1.5 spaces per unit  

Two-bedroom  2.0 spaces per unit  
Three-bedroom  2.5 spaces per unit  
Four or more 
bedrooms  

3.0 spaces per unit  

Additional 
requirements for 
multiple-family 
residential and 
mobile home parks 
with 6 or more 
units (guest 
parking)  

0.25 space for each 
unit  

Multiple-family 
housing for the 
elderly or the 
handicapped  

1.0 space per unit  

Educational facilities: 
Preschool 
nurseries or child 
care centers, 
Kindergarten and 
elementary 
schools and middle 
schools  

1.0 space per 
classroom plus 1.0 
space per employee  

High schools  1.0 space per 
employee, plus 1.0 

20



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:14 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

space for every 4 
students, plus 1.0 
space for every 4 seats 
in the principal place 
of assembly (bench 
capacity is determined 
as 1.0 seat per 30")  

Commercial uses: 
Animal hospitals  1.0 space for every 

300 sq. ft.  
Business and 
professional 
offices  

1.0 space for every 
250 sq. ft. of floor 
space  

Drive-thru or fast 
food restaurants  

1.0 space for every 2 
seats or 1.0 space for 
every 100 sq. ft., 
whichever is greater, 
plus 1.0 largest work 
shift  

Furniture and 
appliance stores  

1.0 space for every 
500 sq. ft. of floor area  

Hospitals  1.0 space for every 2 
beds plus 1.0 space for 
every employee in the 
largest work shift  

Indoor restaurants 
and bars  

1.0 space for every 3 
seats or 1.0 space for 
every 200 sq. ft. of 
floor area, whichever 
is greater  

Libraries  1.0 space for every 
400 sq. ft. of floor area 
plus 1.0 space for 
every 2 employees  

Medical and dental 
offices and clinics  

1.0 space for every 
200 sq. ft. of floor 
space  

Motels, hotels, 
lodges and bed 
and breakfasts  

1.0 space per unit plus 
2.0 spaces for the 
owner or manager's 
unit  

21



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:14 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

Motor vehicle 
sales  

1.0 space for every 
500 sq. ft.  

Motor vehicle 
service and repair  

1.0 space for every 
300 sq. ft. of floor area  

Nursing homes and 
rest homes  

1.0 space per 4 beds 
plus 1.0 space for each 
employee  

Retail businesses 
except for 
furniture and 
appliance stores  

1.0 space for every 
300 sq. ft. of floor area  

Wholesale 
businesses and 
warehouses  

1.0 space for every 
1,000 sq. ft. (excluding 
offices) or 1.0 space 
for every 2 employees, 
whichever is greater  

Industrial uses  1.0 space for every 
500 sq. ft. (excluding 
offices) or 1.0 space 
for every 2 employees, 
whichever is greater  

Places of public 
assembly such as 
churches, 
auditoriums, 
meeting rooms, 
funeral homes  

1.0 space for every 
four seats or benches 
in the principal place 
of assembly (Bench 
capacity is determined 
as on seat per 30 
inches)  

 

(Ord. No. 83-116, Art. XIII, 1983; Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XIII, 2000; Ord. No. 2003-08, 2003; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 
1-13-2015) 

 

22



23



Chapter 16 - ZONING 
ARTICLE 11. ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND USES 

 
 

 
Paonia, Colorado, Municipal Code    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

ARTICLE 11. ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND USES 

Sec. 16-11-10. Generally. 

Accessory buildings, structures and uses may include, but are not limited to, the following:  

(1) Home occupations.  

(2) Renting of rooms.  

(3) Horses and household pets.  

(4) Fences, hedges and walls.  

(5) Private greenhouses.  

(6) Private swimming pools.  

(7) Storage and merchandise in commercial districts.  

(8) Fallout shelters.  

(9) Detached garages.  

(10) Tennis courts.  

(11) Storage sheds for residential areas.  

(Ord. No. 83-116, Art. XVIII, 1983; Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XVIII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 16-11-20. Home occupations. 

A home occupation shall be permitted as an accessory use, provided that a home occupation permit is 
granted by the Town and the criteria for home occupations are met.  

(1) Permit required. A person desiring to establish a home occupation within the Town shall apply as 
follows:  

(a) An application shall for home occupation shall be made to the Town Administrator, or its 
designee, in the form provided by the Town and accompanied by the appropriate fee as set by 
Resolution of the Board of Trustees.  

(b) Upon the receipt of a completed application for a home occupation permit, the Town 
Administrator, or its designee, shall notify the applicant within ten (10) days that such application 
is complete.  

(c) Thereafter the Town Administrator, or its designee, shall notify the applicant and set a date of 
public hearing before the Town Board of Trustees that will allow time for publication and 
notification of adjoining property holders.  

(d) Upon the setting of a public hearing before the Board of Trustees the Town Clerk shall notify the 
property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the applicant's property by regular mail at the 
applicant's expense. The notification will include the nature of the application, a copy of this 
Article and the time and place of a public hearing.  

24



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

(2) Revoke the permit. A home occupation permit may be revoked by the Town Administrator if at any 
time the home occupation fails to meet the criteria listed below.  

(3) Nontransferability. Home occupation permits are issued to an individual for a specific property and use. 
Permits are not transferable should the property be sold or rented to other persons.  

(4) Criteria for home occupations. A home occupation shall be allowed as a permitted accessory use, 
provided that the following conditions are met:  

(a) The use must be conducted entirely within a dwelling or accessory structure and carried on by 
the occupants of the dwelling and no more than one (1) non-occupant employee.  

(b) The use must be clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes 
and must not change the residential character thereof.  

(c) The total area used for such purposes may not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the first-floor 
area of the user's dwelling unit.  

(d) There shall be no change in the outside appearance of the building or premises or other visible 
evidence of the conduct of such home occupation, including advertising signs or displays or 
advertising that solicits or directs persons to the address. A wall-mounted identification sign of 
not more than two (2) square feet shall be permitted.  

(e) There shall not be conducted on the premises the business of selling inventory, supplies or 
products, provided that incidental retail sales may be made in connection with other permitted 
home occupation.  

(f) There must be no exterior storage on the premises of material or equipment used as a part of the 
home occupation.  

(g) No equipment or process shall be used in such home occupation, which creates any glare, fumes, 
odors or other objectionable conditions detectable to the normal senses off the lot if the 
occupation is conducted in a single-family dwelling or outside the dwelling unit if conducted in 
other than a single-family dwelling.  

(h) No traffic shall be generated by such home occupation in greater volumes than would normally 
be expected in a residential neighborhood, and any need for parking generated by the conduct of 
the home occupation shall be met with additional off-street parking spaces that are not located 
in a required yard adjacent to a street.  

(i) Under no circumstances shall any of the following be considered a home occupation: Antique 
shop, barber shop, a beauty parlor (with more than one [1] chair), clinic, mortuary, nursing home, 
restaurant, veterinarian's clinic or dance studio.  

(Ord. No. 83-116, Art. XVIII, 1983; Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XVIII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015; Ord. No. 
2019-06 , § 2, 8-13-2019) 

Sec. 16-11-30. Renting of rooms. 

(a) Single-unit dwellings. The renting of rooms to one (1) or two (2) persons, not members of the family residing 
in the same single-unit dwelling, may be permitted as an accessory use, provided that the following 
conditions are met:  

(1) The total number of unrelated persons, including roomers in any one (1) dwelling unit, must not 
exceed three (3).  

25



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-11-04 15:57:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 3) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

(2) Quarters used by the roomers must not be more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total floor area 
of the dwelling unit.  

(3) The dwelling unit must have only one (1) electric meter.  

(4) Where the renting of rooms is to two (2) roomers, at least one (1) additional off-street parking space 
must be provided per room.  

(b) Multi-unit dwellings. The renting of rooms to one (1) or two (2) persons, not members of the family residing 
in the same multi-unit dwelling, may be permitted as an accessory use, provided that the total number of 
unrelated persons, including roomers, in any dwelling unit must not exceed three (3). Where the renting of 
rooms is to two (2) roomers, at least one (1) additional off-street parking space must be provided per room.  

(c) In addition to normal residential off-street parking requirements, one (1) additional off-street parking space 
shall be provided on site for each lodging room. Ingress and egress shall meet requirements of the IBC and 
ADA. Separate bath and sanitary facilities from those of the host must be provided for each two (2) guest 
rooms.  

(d) In residential districts, landscaping and screening shall be provided to maintain the residential character of 
the building and preserve the right of neighboring residents to enjoy a peaceful occupancy of their homes.  

(Ord. No. 83-116, Art. XVIII, 1983; Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XVIII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

Sec. 16-11-40. Reserved. 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 2017-11 , § 2, adopted October 10, 2017, repealed § 16-11-40, which pertained to 
fences, hedges and walls. See Code Comparative Table for complete derivation. Subsequently, § 3 of such 
ordinance added § 18-9-10.  

Sec. 16-11-50. Reserved. 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 2017-11 , § 2, adopted October 10, 2017, repealed § 16-11-50, which pertained to 
swimming pools, hot tubs, and Jacuzzis. See Code Comparative Table for complete derivation. Subsequently, 
§ 3 of such ordinance added § 18-9-20.  

Sec. 16-11-60. Requirements for accessory buildings and uses. 

(a) All detached accessory buildings shall be located in the rear one-half (½) of the lot.  

(b) On an interior lot, the minimum setback from the rear lot line shall be ten (10) feet and from the side yard 
line shall be six (6) feet if there is no alley or five (5) feet from an existing alley easement line.  

(c) On double-frontage lots, the minimum setback from the rear property line shall be the same as the front 
yard setback for principal uses within that district.  

(d) On corner lots, the accessory building shall not be located closer to the street-side property than the 
required six (6) feet for the principal use.  

(e) Accessory buildings shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.  

(f) The floor area of accessory uses shall be included in the determination of the maximum lot coverage.  

(Ord. No. 83-116, Art. XVIII, 1983; Ord. No. 2000-02, Art. XVIII, 2000; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015) 

 

26



 

August 17, 2023 

Town of Paonia 
PO Box 
Paonia, CO 81428 

Dear Stefen and the Town of Paonia, 

The purpose of this letter of agreement (LOA) is for the Blue Sage Center for the Arts (BSCA) to address the occupancy load 

at the BSCA to include the Sage Alley covered patio.   

The BSCA will use current occupancy load of 144 for Curtis Hall and 110 for the Gallery/Gift shop to also include the Sage 

Alley covered patio.  The Blue Sage will not exceed the total occupancy limit and will be allowed to use all spaces 

concurrently. 

Formal Agreement 

The formal agreement will become effective upon signatures on this letter from the Town of Paonia and the BSCA.  

Force Majeure 

Neither party shall be considered in default or in breach of the forma agreement, when such failure or delay to perform 

should be triggered by any act or force of nature beyond either party’s control.  

Notice 

Both parties agree that any notices provided in connection with the formal agreement, shall be made in writing by 

registered or certified mail. 

Prevailing Law 

The formal agreement shall be governed in accordance with the prevailing laws of the State of Colorado.  The provision of 

this agreement shall be construed in such a manner that shall render this an effective and valid legal instrument under 

current applicable law.  Should any part of this formal agreement be deemed ineffective or unenforceable, only that specific 

provision shall be invalid and unenforceable, without affecting or invalidating any of the remaining provisions contained 

within this formal agreement. 

Legal Remedies 

Should either party seek legal remedy to enforce or interpret the provision contained in this formal agreement, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, in conjunction with any other relief deemed appropriate by 

the court to which the party may be entitled.  

Both parties acknowledge that the terms set forth in this letter accurately reflect the terms being agreed to by the parties. 

  

Blue Sage Center for the Arts     Town of Paonia 

Debra Muzikar, Executive Director    Stefen Wynn , Town Administrator 

________________________________Date_________  _______________________________Date_________ 

 

 

 

 

226-228 Grand Ave/PO Box 700, Paonia, CO 81428  ~  970-527-7243  ~  info@bluesage.org 
 

27



 

August 17, 2023 

Town of Paonia 
PO Box 
Paonia, CO 81428 

Dear Stefen and the Town of Paonia, 

The purpose of this letter of agreement (LOA) is for the Blue Sage Center for the Arts (BSCA) to address the parking 

requirements for the Sage Alley covered patio.   

The BSCA will use the Town of Paonia’s parking lot, located in the alley between Grand Ave and Main Street and will also use 

the parking lot located on Main Street where the electric car charging station is located.  These locations will be used to 

address the need for additional parking for the covered patio the BSCA will be building. 

Formal Agreement 

The formal agreement will become effective upon signatures on this letter from the Town of Paonia and the BSCA. This 

agreement shall remain in effect until such time as there is no longer a parking space requirement required by the Town 

parking code. 

Force Majeure 

Neither party shall be considered in default or in breach of the forma agreement, when such failure or delay to perform 

should be triggered by any act or force of nature beyond either party’s control.  

Notice 

Both parties agree that ay notices provided in connection with the formal agreement, shall be made in writing by registered 

or certified mail. 

Prevailing Law 

The formal agreement shall be governed in accordance with the prevailing laws of the State of Colorado.  The provision of 

this agreement shall be construed in such a manner that shall render this an effective and valid legal instrument under 

current applicable law.  Should any part of this formal agreement be deemed ineffective or unenforceable, only that specific 

provision shall be invalid and unenforceable, without affecting or invalidating any of the remaining provisions contained 

within this formal agreement. 

Legal Remedies 

Should either party seek legal remedy to enforce or interpret the provision contained in this formal agreement, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, in conjunction with any other relief deemed appropriate by 

the court to which the party may be entitled.  

Both parties acknowledge that the terms set forth in this letter accurately reflect the terms being agreed to by the parties. 

  

Blue Sage Center for the Arts     Town of Paonia 

Debra Muzikar, Executive Director    Stefen Wynn , Town Administrator 

________________________________Date_________  _______________________________Date_________ 

 

 

PO Box 700, Paonia, CO 81428  ~  970-527-743  ~  info@bluesage.org 
 

 

28



TOWN OF PAONIA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

DATE: 

BACKGROUND: 

BUDGET: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ATTACHMENT: 

Public Hearing for Blue Sage Center for the Arts

Samira Vetter, Town Clerk

9.21.23

• Application has been received.
• Fees have been received and documented.
• Public Hearing has been Noticed in the Delta County

Independent 15 days before the scheduled hearing.
• Public Hearing has been Noticed at  226 Grand Avenue 10 days 

before scheduled hearing, posted by Town staff.
• All owners within 200 ft of 226 Grand Avenue have been mailed

a Notice of the scheduled public hearing, 10 days before.

$250.00 to  10-32-04 - Licenses and Permits

All legal requirements have been met for the Public Hearing Process for a 
special review of this variance request.

Public hearing notice
Affidavit of publication
Notification letter
Proof of mailing

29



TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

  
NOTICE is hereby given that the Town of Paonia Planning Commission will hold a Public 

Hearing at 4:00 pm on Thursday, September 21, 2023, at the Paonia Town Hall, 214 Grand Avenue, 
Paonia, CO  81428.   

 
The purpose of the Public Hearing will be to consider a variance for the rear setback, and 

parking minimums of the Paonia Municipal code. The petitioners, The Blue Sage Center for the Arts, 
requested the variance to build a shaded porch on the back of the building on their property located at 
226 Grand Avenue, Paonia, CO 81428. 
 

Any person may appear at the Public Hearing and be heard regarding the matters under 
consideration.  For further information concerning the Public Hearing, please contact the Town Clerk 
at 970-527-4101 or samirav@townofpaonia.com during regular business hours or mail comments to 
Attn :Town Clerk PO Box 460, Paonia, CO 81428 by September 15th, 2023. 
 
 Dated the 29th day of August, 2023. 
 
       TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
 
        
 

Samira M Vetter 
                  Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 

30

mailto:samirav@townofpaonia.com


Blue Sage Alley Variance - Page 1 of 1

[def:$signername|printname|req|signer1] [def:$signersig|sig|req|signer1] [def:$notarysig|sig|req|notary] [def:$date|date|req|notary] [def:$state|state|req|notary] [def:$county|county|req|notary] [def:$disclosure|disclosure|req|notary] [def:$seal|seal|req|notary]

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

State of Florida, County of Charlotte, ss:

Bailee Liston, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: That (s)he

is a duly authorized signatory of Column Software, PBC, duly

authorized agent of Delta County Independent, a newspaper printed

and published in the City of Delta, County of Delta, State of

Colorado, and that this affidavit is Page 1 of 1 with the full text of the

sworn-to notice set forth on the pages that follow, and the hereto

attached:

PUBLICATION DATES:
6 Sep 2023

13 Sep 2023

NOTICE ID: traYDt2TW3zphg8X1rno 
PUBLISHER ID: DCI000019 
NOTICE NAME: Blue Sage Alley Variance 
Publication Fee: 47.84

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of Colorado that the
foregoing is true and correct.

[$signersig ]
(Signed)______________________________________  [$seal]

VERIFICATION

State of Florida
County of Charlotte

Subscribed in my presence and sworn to before me on this:
09/13/2023

[$notarysig ]
______________________________
Notary Public
[$disclosure]

 

Notarized online using audio-video communication

31




AuditTrailVersion = 1.1    proof.com


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:12:34 UTC


PerformedByUserName Rachael Mary Schultz


PerformedByUserRole notary


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Signature Added


ActionDescription {"signature_type"=>"Image", "annotation_type"=>"vector_graphic", "location"=>{"page"=>1,
"page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[78.66546447316195, 272.79349309705]}}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 76.123.68.198


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:12:31 UTC


PerformedByUserName Rachael Mary Schultz


PerformedByUserRole notary


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"text"=>"Notarized online using audio-video communication", "annotation_type"=>"text",
"location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[66.0, 196.84]}}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 76.123.68.198


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:12:30 UTC


PerformedByUserName Rachael Mary Schultz


PerformedByUserRole notary


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Seal Added


ActionDescription {"notarial_act"=>"jurat", "annotation_type"=>"image", "location"=>{"page"=>1,
"page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[218.81, 371.43]}, "notarial_act_principals"=>["b6a0a5b3-e009-
4610-9453-11cc810ae724"]}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 76.123.68.198


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:12:28 UTC


PerformedByUserName Bailee Liston


PerformedByUserRole customer


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Signature Added


ActionDescription {"signature_type"=>"Image", "annotation_type"=>"vector_graphic", "location"=>{"page"=>1,
"page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[66.0, 392.05]}}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 47.33.39.15







ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:10:26 UTC


PerformedByUserName Bailee Liston


PerformedByUserRole customer


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Agreed to electronic agreement for initials


ActionDescription {}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 47.33.39.15


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:10:24 UTC


PerformedByUserName Bailee Liston


PerformedByUserRole customer


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Agreed to electronic agreement for signature


ActionDescription {}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 47.33.39.15


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:10:19 UTC


PerformedByUserName Bailee Liston


PerformedByUserRole customer


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Identification Verified


ActionDescription {}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 76.123.68.198


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:10:17 UTC


PerformedByUserName Bailee Liston


PerformedByUserRole customer


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Document Accessed


ActionDescription {}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 47.33.39.15


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:07:00 UTC


PerformedByUserName Bailee Liston


PerformedByUserRole customer


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Document Accessed


ActionDescription {}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 47.33.39.15







ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[65.25,
207.64]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[64.49,
250.31]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[218.31,
371.93]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[64.49,
393.56]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251







ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[141.57,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[128.77,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:05 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[118.31,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:33:04 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[109.01,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251







ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:32:59 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[100.05,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:32:56 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[90.0,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:32:52 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[79.62,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:32:51 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Annotation Added


ActionDescription {"annotation_type"=>"whitebox", "location"=>{"page"=>1, "page_type"=>"doc", "point"=>[65.94,
710.24]}}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251







ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 18:32:31 UTC


PerformedByUserName Leo Hentschker


PerformedByUserRole organization_member


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Document Created


ActionDescription {}


PerformedBySystemName BusinessAPI


IP Address 107.178.232.251


ActionDateTime 2023-09-13 19:16:15 UTC


PerformedByUserName Rachael Mary Schultz


PerformedByUserRole notary


PerformedByParticipantType


ActionType Digital Certificate Applied to Document


ActionDescription {"signature_type"=>"Digital"}


PerformedBySystemName NotarizeSignerWeb


IP Address 76.123.68.198







32



33


	Top
	1.	Public Hearing for Blue Sage Center for the Arts requesting a Special Variance on Alley Set-Backs
	Z-23-02 Staff Report Blue Sage Center for the Arts Variance Request for Shaded Porch_Final
	Town Clerk Report of Legal Requirements

	Bottom

